Public Document Pack

-
lfg§ Agenda

%

Coventry City Council

Planning Committee

Time and Date
2.00 pm on Thursday, 12th December, 2024

Place

Committee Room 3 - Council House

10.

Apologies for Absence
Declarations of Interest

Members Declarations of Contact on Planning Applications

Members are reminded that contacts about any planning applications on this
agenda must, unless reported to this meeting by the Strategic Lead for
Planning, be declared before the application is considered.

Minutes of Previous Meeting 7th November 2024 (Pages 3 - 4)

Late Representations

To be circulated at the meeting.

Application - PL/2024/0000935/FUL - Ribbon Court, 689 Foleshill Road
(Pages 5 - 26)

Report of the Strategic Lead for Planning

Application - PL/2024/0002137/HHA - 12 Broadway (Pages 27 - 38)
Report of the Strategic Lead for Planning

Application - PL/2024/0002068/HHA - 35 Malvern Road (Pages 39 - 48)
Report of the Strategic Lead for Planning

Outstanding Issues

There are no outstanding issues.

Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved

Julie Newman, Director of Law and Governance, Council House, Coventry

Page 1



Wednesday, 4 December 2024
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is

Carolyn Sinclair / Tom Robinson carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk /
tom.robinson@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors P Akhtar, R Bailey, J Gardiner, L Harvard (Chair), T Jandu,
G Lewis, G Lloyd, K Maton, J McNicholas, C Miks and D Toulson (Deputy Chair)

By invitation: Councillor N Akhtar (Cabinet Member for Housing and Communities)

Carolyn Sinclair / Tom Robinson
carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk / tom.robinson@coventry.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda Item 4

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Planning Committee held at 2.00 pm on Thursday, 7
November 2024

Present:
Members: Councillor L Harvard (Chair)

Councillor P Akhtar
Councillor R Bailey
Councillor J Gardiner
Councillor T Jandu
Councillor G Lewis
Councillor K Maton
Councillor J McNicholas
Councillor D Toulson

Other Members: Councillor N Akthar, Cabinet Member for Housing and
Communities

Employees (by Service Area):
Planning and Regulation R Back
L D’Onofrio
P Flora-Choda
A Lynch
Highways and Transportation N Benison
Law and Governance O Aremu
T Robinson
C Sinclair

S Teli
A Veness

Apologies: Councillor G Lloyd and C Miks

Public Business

52. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

53. Members Declarations of Contact on Planning Applications
There were no declaration of contacts.

54. Minutes of the Meeting held on 17 October 2024

The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2024 were agreed and signed as a
true record.

Page 3



55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

Late Representations

The Committee noted a tabled report which summarised late representations and
responses on the following:

Application Site Minute
PL/2023/0002649/RESM | 401 London Road 56
PL/2024/0001183/FUL 189 Cheveral Avenue 57

Application PL/2023/0002649/RESM - 401 London Road

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Lead for Planning, detailing
the above application for submission of reserved matters in respect of application
reference OUT/2020/2882, granted on 16/09/2021 for Outline application (with all
matters reserved except access): for erection of up to 24 dwellings with car
parking, served off the existing accesses. The application was recommended for
approval.

The Late Representation report set out updates to conditions 3 and 4.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted in respect of Application
PL/2023/0002649/RESM subject to conditions as set out within the report,
and those updated in the Late Representation report.

Application PL/2024/0001183/FUL - 189 Cheveral Avenue

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Lead for Planning, detailing
the above application for a Change of Use from retail to hot food takeaway use

including external flue which was recommended for approval.

A registered speaker spoke in respect of their objections to the proposal. The
applicant’s representative spoke in support of the application.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted in respect of Application
PL/2023/0001183/FUL subject to conditions as set out in the report.

Outstanding Issues
There were no outstanding issues.

Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as

matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved

There were no other items of public business.

(Meeting closed at 2.55 pm)

Page 4




Agenda Iltem 6

Planning Committee Report

Planning Ref: PL/2024/0000935/FUL
Site: Ribbon Court, 689 Foleshill Road, Coventry, CV6 5GT
Ward: Foleshill
Proposal: Change of use from sheltered housing for older person(s) to
temporary accommodation. (Sui Generis).
Case Officer: Emma Spandley
SUMMARY

The site is an existing building built as purpose-built flats as sheltered accommodation
for older persons.

The application seeks to change the use to one of temporary accommodation to house
families that are considered homeless by the City Council.

The change of use is considered acceptable subject to conditions restricting the length
of time someone can reside in the building and the adherence to a Management Plan
to help alleviate the concerns raised by the general public.

BACKGROUND

The application site relates to an existing building granted permission under
R/2007/2551 and constructed in 2009/10 for sheltered accommodation for older
persons. The building contains 50no apartments, split as 40no x one bedroomed and
10no x two bedroomed.

The building provides 14no off road car parking space.

Condition No.2 of R/2007/2551 restricts the occupancy of the building to sheltered
housing scheme providing care and communal facilities for older people.

KEY FACTS

Reason for report to |Over five objections against Officer recommendation.
committee:

Current use of site: Sheltered Housing for Older people
Proposed use of site: Temporary Accommodation
RECOMMENDATION

Planning Committee are recommended to grant planning permission, subject to the
conditions listed in the report; and

Delegate authority to the Strategic Lead Planning, in consultation with the Chair to
agree any amendments to these conditions, which are considered necessary.

REASON FOR DECISION
e The proposal is acceptable in principle.
e The proposal will not adversely impact upon highway safety, or neighbouring

Page 5



residential amenity.
e The proposal accords with Policies DS3, H5, H6, DE1, AC1, AC2, AC3 and AC4 of
the Coventry Local Plan 2016, together with the aims of the NPPF.

APPLICATION PROPOSAL
The application proposes the change of use with no external or internal alterations,
from older persons accommodation to temporary accommodation.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site relates to an existing building constructed in 2009/10 which is
located along Foleshill Road and Churchill Avenue. Foleshill Road is to the east, with
Churchill Avenue to the north. The site adjoins N0.681 Foleshill Road to the south and
the rear gardens of properties No.4 Ransom Road and No.1 Churchill Avenue to the
west.

The existing site has an existing 14no spaced car park accessed via Churchill Avenue,
adjacent to No.1 Churchill Avenue, which spans the rear gardens of No.1 Churchill
Avenue and No.4 Ransom Road, abutting the rear boundary of No.681 Foleshill Road.

No.681 — No.677 Foleshill Road, to the south of the site are commercial properties at
ground floor.

Parking is restricted along the western side of Foleshill Road via double yellow lines.
There are parking bays on the opposite side of Foleshill Road.

There is unrestricted parking within the side roads.

PLANNING HISTORY
The following is the most relevant: -

Application Number Description of Development Decision and
Date
R/2007/2551 Demolition of existing buildings and | 26" February
(Cov Ref. 22188/Q) erection of 50 apartments for older | 2008
persons with care. Revised access
and parking

Page 6



POLICY

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2023. The NPPF sets out the
Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.
It sets out the Government’s requirements for the planning system only to the extent
that is relevant, proportionate and necessary to do so. The NPPF increases the focus
on achieving high quality design and states that it is “fundamental to what the planning
and development process should achieve”.

Consultation is currently underway seeking views on the Government’s proposed
approach to revising the NPPF. It also seeks views on a series of wider national
planning policy reforms. The consultation closed on 24" September 2024.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) adds further context to the NPPF,
and it is intended that the two documents are read together.

Local Policy Guidance

The current local policy is provided within the Coventry Local Plan 2016, which was
adopted by Coventry City Council on 6" December 2017. Relevant policy relating to
this application is:

Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Policy H5:  Managing existing Housing Stock

Policy H6:  Affordable Housing

Policy DE1  Ensuring High Quality Design

Policy AC1: Accessible Transport Network

Policy AC2: Road Network

Policy AC3: Demand Management

Policy AC4: Walking and Cycling

Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):
SPD Coventry Connected

CONSULTATION
Non-statutory
No objections subject to conditions have been received from:
e Local Highway Authority (LHA)
Neighbour Consultation
Immediate neighbours were originally notified on 20" June 2024 a site notice was
posted on 6" August 2024.

An e petition sponsored by Councillor Shakila Nazir was submitted which ran from 5"
August 2024 to 30" September 2024.

It attracted 55 signatures.

The Petition states:
We, the undersigned, are writing to express our strong concerns regarding the

Page 7



proposal to convert the Ribbon Court building into a homeless shelter on Foleshill
Road, Coventry.

Our community is deeply troubled by this development for several reasons:

1. **High Crime Rates™**: According to a report from Crimerate.co.uk, Foleshill has
the second-highest crime rate in Coventry. This alarming statistic raises serious
concerns about the safety and security of both residents and individuals who
may be placed in the proposed shelter.

2. **Proximity to Vulnerable Areas™*: Ribbon Court is located directly opposite
Edgwick Community Primary School and Edgwick Park playground. This
location raises concerns about the safety of our children, who frequently use
these facilities. Creating a homeless shelter in such close proximity to a school
and playground may pose additional risks.

3. **Family and Community Impact**: Foleshill Road is home to a diverse family
community and various businesses, including off-licenses. The proposed
change in the building’s use may disrupt the community's fabric and affect the
quality of life for existing residents.

4. **Existing Services**: We would like to highlight that there is already a
homeless hotel operating on Harnall Lane. Given this provision, there is no
pressing need for another homeless shelter on Foleshill Road. The
concentration of such facilities could place an undue burden on our local
community and its resources.

5. **Balancing Responsibilities**: While we recognize our statutory duty to support
vulnerable populations, we also have a responsibility to ensure the safety and
well-being of our children and all Foleshill residents. It is essential that any
decisions made consider the impact on both groups.

20no. letters of objection were received, raising the following material planning
considerations:
e Increase in crime.
Cause anti-social behaviour.
Cause noise and disturbance.
Impact on traffic and congestion
Impact on parking
Impact on the local primary school
Impact on local services

Out of the objections received the following are NOT considered to be material
planning considerations.
¢ Impact on house values

APPRAISAL

Policy Background

The National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 11, states that “Plans and
decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. For
Decision Making, this means: -

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

Page 8



d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless: i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed;
or ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.”
Footnote 8 to paragraph 11 confirms that this includes situations where the local
authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites.

The Coventry Local Plan was formally adopted on 6th December 2017. Since it was
adopted, the Government introduced the Standard Method, a standardised way of
calculating minimum housing need. As the Local Plan is now more than five years
old the Standard Method is now the determining factor when considering local. using
need. The Standard Method incorporates an uplift which applies to certain cities and
urban centres (including Coventry). When using the Standard Method, the Council is
not able to demonstrate a five-year housing land supply. As such, the tilted balance
is engaged and therefore planning permission should be granted, unless “any adverse
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits” when
assessed against the policies of the NPPF taken as a whole.

Consultation is currently underway seeking views on the Government’s proposed
approach to revising the NPPF. The proposed revisions fundamentally change the
calculation and outcome of the Standard Method resulting in a lower housing target
for Coventry. As the revisions are currently the subject of consultation, the changes
are only considered to be afforded limited weight at this stage.

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

Principle of the Change of Use
R/2007/2551 granted permission for the redevelopment of the site for 50no apartments
for older persons with care together with associated access and parking.

The mix of apartments comprises 40no, one bedroomed unit and 10no two bed units.
Communal facilities in the form of a lounge/dining area are located on the ground floor
of the building.

Condition No.2 of the 2007 permission secured the site as ‘sheltered housing scheme
providing care and communal facilities for older people and for no other purpose’.

The reason the condition was included:

‘The development does not propose any affordable housing and

proposes a level of car parking proposed which is significantly below that which would
be expected for a residential development of the scale proposed and permission is
only granted on the understanding that the development will.

be used as sheltered housing providing care. In such circumstances it is

considered that having regard to the nature of accommodation proposed, the

use and the level of car parking would be acceptable.’

Page 9



The proposal is to change the use of the building from sheltered housing scheme
providing care and communal facilities for older people to temporary accommodation.

Temporary accommodation is a broad term that describes temporary housing for
people who are homeless.

Anyone can be placed in temporary accommodation by local authorities under the
Housing Act 1996, providing they fit the criteria of being in priority need and
are ‘vulnerable enough.’ This is often families with children, pregnant women, elderly
people and individuals who are particularly vulnerable.

Latest government figures on Statutory homelessness in England: January to March
2024, show there are officially 117,450 households, including 151,630 children in
temporary accommodation; a new high since records began 25 years ago.

The City Council has a duty to provide temporary or interim accommodation to people
who:
e appear to be homeless and in priority need, and
o passed all four homelessness tests and are waiting for an offer of social
housing.

Despite improving local housing systems, the city still has high levels of
homelessness, highlighting a need to work together with partners to improve the use
of existing homes and empty dwellings.

The change of use is being supported by the City Councils Housing Team.

It is considered that the existing and proposed uses were and are residential,
therefore, the main issue is the loss of the sheltered housing scheme providing care
and communal facilities for older people.

There are no policies which restrict the loss of such uses, indeed, both uses are
considered to be 100% affordable residential housing.

Ribbon Court was constructed in 2009/10 and has struggled to reach financial viability
as an older person’s facility. It never reached its capacity in terms of occupation and
with the restricted user group failed to attract the traction in the housing market it
required to continue as an older person’s facility.

At the time of the submission of the application there were only two occupants of the
building.

In terms of the nature of the use proposed it would assist in meeting a

number of City Council housing priorities, it is for a different form of affordable housing
therefore in accordance with the reasoning behind condition No.2 of the 2007
permission. The principle of the change of use will not remove or even reduce the
affordable housing element and is acceptable in principle subject to satisfactory car
parking provision being provided.

Page 10



HIGHWAYS, ACCESS AND PARKING

Policy AC1 ‘Accessible Transport Network’ of the Coventry Local Plan states that
development proposals which are expected to generate additional trips on the
transport network should:

a) Integrate with existing transport networks including roads, public transport and
walking and cycling routes to promote access by a choice of transport modes.

b) Consider the transport and accessibility needs of everyone living, working or
visiting the city.

c) Support the delivery of new and improved high-quality local transport networks
which are closely integrated into the built form.

d) Actively support the provision and integration of emerging and future intelligent
mobility infrastructure.

Policy AC2 of the Coventry Local Plan states new development proposals which are
predicted to have a negative impact on the capacity and/or safety of the highway
network should mitigate and manage the traffic growth which they are predicted to
generate to ensure that they do not cause unacceptable levels of traffic congestion,
highway safety problems and poor air quality’. Highway mitigation and management
measures should focus firstly on demand management measures (Policy AC3)
including the promotion of sustainable modes of travel, and secondly on the delivery
of appropriate highway capacity interventions. Highway capacity interventions should
be appropriate to the scale of development and expected impact and will be
determined through the associated Transport Assessment.

Accesses

The existing vehicle access to the site is from Churchill Avenue providing 14no spaces
to a car park provided at the rear of the building. This will not change as part of the
application.

Pedestrian / Cycle Network
Pedestrian access is provided into the building from the main front entrance located
on Foleshill Road and from the parking area to the rear.

The existing highway network lends itself to cycling. National Cycle Network Route 52
is located approximately 650m to the north-east of the site, which provides a direct off-
road connection to Coventry City Centre.

Bus Provision
A bus stop is located immediately adjacent to the frontage on Foleshill Road providing
services for the 20, 20A, 20B and 148 buses.

Parking

One of the reoccurring objections received centre around the parking provision for the
building and the impact this would have on surrounding residential streets.

In accordance with the Coventry Connected SPD, all one-bedroom properties require
one parking space and all properties with two bedrooms require two off road, dedicated
parking spaces.

Therefore, if the site was being used for open market housing the parking requirement

Page 11



would be:

¢ 40no x one bedroomed units require 40no car parking spaces, and
e 10no x two bedroomed units require 20no car parking spaces,
e Total requirement 60no car parking spaces.

Visitor Parking
One bedroomed units require one visitor parking spaces per five units and two
bedroomed units require one visitor parking spaces per ten units.

Eight visitor parking spaces are required for one bedroomed unit and two visitor
parking spaces required for two bedroomed units, making a total of 10no visitor parking
spaces required. When added to the requirement for the flats themselves it makes a
grand total of 70no spaces being required.

The concerns of the residents regarding the impact on parking in surrounding street
were originally echoed by the Local Highway Authority (LHA) who required more
information requiring the potential car ownership levels of people residing within the
building.

More information was submitted in support of the application stating that the proposals
are for transitional accommodation for families, who would occupy the site on a
temporary basis (up to two years) until future residence is determined.

A review has been undertaken of the Census 2021 Car Ownership data for the
Foleshill ward in which the site is located. The data demonstrates that 37.6% of all
person’s residing in Foleshill ward do not own a car, and 41.2% of all persons residing
in Foleshill ward only own one car. This demonstrates that car ownership is generally
low in the ward as a whole. It should also be noted that these figures are representative
of typical household types.

The application provides a total of 14no. spaces for the 50 units, which equates to 28%
parking provision on the site.

Having regard to the bespoke nature of the proposals (in which the housing type would
not typically align with those captured by Census data, and future occupants’ personal
circumstances would be very different), coupled with the sustainable location of the
site, it is expected that car ownership levels will be low for future occupants.

Dovetailed with the above information and the sustainable location of the site a
Management Plan was requested to be submitted to set out the criteria for how the
building, occupants and car parking would be managed.

The Management Plan sets out the following:

Admission to Ribbon Court will be managed through Coventry City Council’s housing
service. Families in need of accommodation will be assessed, and appropriate
referrals will be made. Occupants will sign licence agreements, which include strict
conditions for occupancy, parking use, and visitor policies. Breaches of these
agreements may lead to termination of the licence. The building will operate a no visitor

Page 12



policy, ensuring that only authorised professionals can enter.

Eight spaces (No. 1 to 8) will be allocated to tenants. Six spaces will be restricted to
staff and professional visitors (No. 9 to 14). Parking permits will only be issued to
tenants following a referral process and the completion of a risk assessment to ensure
the suitability of car use. This will prevent the car park from overfilling and ensure fair
allocation of spaces.

Referral agreement: Once all eight parking tenant permits have been issued,
Coventry City Council will strictly only refer households that are not car users, to
reduce the impact on the local area.

Tenant Parking Permits: Of the 14no parking spaces, eight will be designated for
tenants. Parking permits will be issued only after a thorough referral process and risk
assessment prior to confirmation of accommodation. This process will determine
whether the tenant is a car user and genuinely requires on-site parking, with the goal
of limiting car use on-site to necessary cases.

The license agreements will stipulate the rules for parking, and any breach could result
in the revocation of the permit or further penalties, including potential eviction for
repeated violations.

Staff and Professional Parking: The remaining six spaces will be allocated for
staff and essential visiting professionals. These spaces will not be available for general
tenant use and will be closely monitored.

CCTV and Monitoring: The car park will be monitored by CCTV to ensure.
compliance with parking allocations. Any unauthorised vehicles will be quickly
identified, and staff will take necessary action to enforce the parking policy.

Enforcement and Eviction: The applicant will strictly enforce the parking rules. Tenants
who breach the parking conditions, such as using a space without a permit, will be
subject to license breach actions under the legal terms of their agreement.

This could include the revocation of parking privileges or, in cases of repeated.
violations, eviction. To proactively avoid eviction, the applicant will work with the tenant
and Coventry City Council to secure alternative accommodation.

Enforcement Measures for Unauthorised Car Use: If a resident without a parking
permit begins bringing a vehicle to Ribbon Court or parking in nearby streets, the
applicant will issue an initial warning, reminding the resident of the no-parking terms
in their licence agreement. Should unauthorised parking continue, Coventry City
Council will support the family in relocating to alternative accommodation within 2 to 4
weeks.

Staff Alternative Parking: The applicant will also utilise dedicated parking spaces at
their nearby office (James Brindley House, Canal Basin, Coventry, CV1 4LY) to further
reduce the demand for on-site parking and ensure staff carpool when required.

Sustainable Travel Encouragement: Tenants and staff will be encouraged to
use public transport, walking, or cycling due to the site’s proximity to well-connected

Page 13



public transport options. Travel packs with information on local bus routes, cycle paths,
and other sustainable travel options will be provided to tenants as part of their welcome
pack.

Bicycle Storage: A secure bicycle storage area will be made available in the
paved area of the site this space will be provided to encourage cycling as a sustainable
mode of transport for both tenants and staff.

Therefore, on this basis, the provision of 14no. spaces is considered appropriate in
this situation and the Local Highway Authority has raised no objection on the basis of
the free flow of traffic and highway safety, subject to conditions requiring the following:

The building shall be occupied for temporary accommodation only and for no other
purpose.

The building shall not be occupied by any persons for a continuous period exceeding
730 days (2 years) in total. The owners/operators of the building shall maintain an up-
to-date register of the names of all occupiers at the building and the date in which they
commenced occupation and make this information available at all reasonable times to
the Local Planning Authority.

The building hereby permitted shall only operate in full accordance with the approved
management plan, namely REPORT - Ribbon Court Management Plan, as submitted
16th November 2024. The building shall only operate in full accordance with the
approved details which shall not be amended in any way.

IMPACT ON EXISTING RESIDENITAL ENVIRONMENT
Policy DS3 of the Coventry Development Plan together with the aims of the NPPF
seek sustainable development.

Development that meets the needs of the present, without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs.

Policy H5 of the Coventry Local Plan states where appropriate, the existing housing
stock will be renovated and improved, in association with the enhancement of the
surrounding residential environment and to meet local housing needs.

The petition and a number of the objections are concerned with the impact of
temporary accommodation on the existing residential properties and the nearby
schools and playgrounds.

It is understood that temporary accommodation conjures up many images, but the
building is proposed to house families who are in need of permanent accommodation.
Once suitable permanent accommodation has been found the families will be
rehoused.

The building has self-contained flats, these are not bedrooms with all shared facilities
like an HMO or a Hostel.

Ribbon Court will operate with 24/7 security and staffing split between daytime support

Page 14



staff, with a concierge service managing security during off-hours. There will also be
CCTV both internal and external, secured fob access and regular patrols by the
concierge services.

To create positive relations with the local community and proactively manage any
parking issues associated with Ribbon Court, the applicant will implement clear
communication channels for nearby residents. These channels will allow residents to
easily report any observed parking issues directly related to Ribbon Court tenants or
visitors.

On this basis, the use is residential in nature which is compatible with the surrounding
residential area. The approval of the Management Plan will help ensure that the
occupants of the site are safe, and the existing residents have assurances.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section
149 states: -

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the

need to:

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that

is prohibited by or under this Act.

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory duty, and
the matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the determination of
this application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development.

CONCLUSION

The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle and will not
result in any significant impact upon the free flow of traffic or residential amenity. The
reason for Coventry City Council granting planning permission is because the
development is in accordance with: Policies DS3, H5, H6, DE1, AC1, AC2, AC3 and
AC4, of the Coventry Local Plan 2016, together with the aims of the NPPF.

Page 15



CONDITIONS/REASON

Reason

Reason

Reason

Reason

Page 16

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from the
date of this decision.

To conform with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

e DRAWING - Location Plan, dated 21st May 2024

o AMENDED DRAWING - Existing and Proposed Ground Floor Plans -
Drawing No.1018-002 Rev B

o AMENDED DRAWING - Existing and Proposed First Floor Plans -
Drawing No.1018-008 Rev B

e AMENDED DRAWING - Existing and Proposed Second Floor Plans -
Drawing No.1018-004 Rev B

o AMENDED DRAWING - Existing and Proposed Third Floor Plans -
Drawing No.1018-005 Rev B

e AMENDED DRAWING - Existing and Proposed Elevations 1,2 & 3 -
Drawing No.1018-006 Rev C

e AMENDED DRAWING - Existing and Proposed Elevations 1, 2 & 6 and
Streetscenes - Drawing No.1018-007 Rev C

e REPORT - Ribbon Court Management Plan, as submitted 15th
November 2024.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Prior to occupation of the building for temporary accommodation hereby
permitted, details of cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking facilities shall be
provided in full accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of
the building and thereafter those facilities shall remain available for use at all
times and shall not be removed or altered in any way.

In the interests of encouraging the use of alternative modes of transport with the
aim of creating a more sustainable city in accordance with Policies DS3, AC3
and AC4 of the Coventry Local 2017.

The building hereby permitted shall only operate in full accordance with the
approved management plan, namely REPORT - Ribbon Court Management
Plan, as submitted 15th November 2024. The building shall only operate in full
accordance with the approved details which shall not be amended in any way.

To ensure that the development is compatible with nearby uses and so that it
does not adversely impact upon the safe and free flow of traffic in the vicinity of
the site or residential amenity in accordance with Policies AC1, AC2, AC3 and



DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2016.

The building shall be occupied for temporary accommodation only and for no
other purpose

To ensure that the development is compatible with nearby uses and so that it
does not adversely impact upon the safe and free flow of traffic in the vicinity of

Reason the site or residential amenity in accordance with Policies AC1, AC2, AC3 and
DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2016.

The building shall not be occupied by any persons for a continuous period
exceeding 730 days (2 years) in total. The owners/operators of the building shall

6. maintain an up-to-date register of the names of all occupiers at the building and
the date in which they commenced occupation and make this information
available at all reasonable times to the Local Planning Authority.

To ensure that the development is compatible with nearby uses and so that it
does not adversely impact upon the safe and free flow of traffic in the vicinity of

Reason the site or residential amenity in accordance with Policies AC1, AC2, AC3 and
DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2016.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Location Plan

50
I




Do Not Scale
This dirawing is for
planmning purposes only.

N\ Stone Heads and Cills
\\\\ N\ i Colowr Buff
_|q“_ AN \ 7 = //_/ﬂ\w\: = :/J 7 - W_\ . //_// 2 \\ Brick A - Red
ED DE_ 11 A Brick - Budf Brick ® - wed
m = = = Brick C - Red
O = m) = 4 E D\EU E _D_ T T 1 _,D,D ”D” Brick D - Buff
Brick C - rRed —— Brick C - Red
- T mam; —— —— mw— I (1]
* ITgllgiig 1 L] =
% — = — S Y A L1 L Ll } L Ll } L} | Ll 1 — 1 % [ \oi ] [ 11
mwxmxm.ﬁ\vi\@ SS\Q A == = = Brick A - Red
Proposed Elevation Owne to Foleshill Road 1: 100 @ Al
IS an | >~ oo i o
! _ = N\ —
N N \\\M/ ]
1 T 1 1  —— N < —I N < I ]
11 1] L [
— Brick C - Red w;%o-ma_&|_ Brick c-rRed Brick C - Red >
L F—1 1 ——— —r— ——— ———— —r— ——— —r— | JWDM — — — — ]
IR ! — o O 0d @ ™ fflm
T 1 —— —— ——— ——— —— ——— —r— | — - — — — - — — — > - =
1M [ 10 [T 1] uﬁaﬁﬁuﬁuuﬁaﬁﬁuﬁuuﬁjﬁuﬁ 1
e EricieA—twen E—rs Brick A - Red = == = || || [ — = | j= He= ﬁ g
— =l = L 11 1 T[] I s o O o s T e fos st topaning
meeting with G § Client g-2-02.

Rev.B.Jan'og - amended to planning
letter refSP/DPR/PC/22188/R dated

Proposed Elevation Two to Churehill Avenue 1: 100 @ Al

Letter refSP/DR/PC/22122/Q dated
12-1-0%2 and clients comments.

ano ExLStLA
g ‘MmMra ==

michael ramus architects

chartered architects

P NG
s SN L 76 priory road, kenilworth
\\\ /// \\&Ilr/// warwickshire, CV8 I1LQ
p.d N y - . .
\\\ N Z N\ 01926 512 400 & 511 111
P /// \\\ ”’/// info@ramus-architects.co.uk
N AN NN N N / O\ client...
S N\ N — —— /ﬂ\ ﬂ\ ﬂ\ . Z \
\\\ /// - o 2 L 1\ ¥ : i Y\ F L ¢ ¥ ] ; J /// A ‘
P S L I 1 I 1 I 1 I I ,
Brick D - Buff > P N N _ _ m_ EH_ D D Wr 2 AN Brick D - Buff ¥
L N\ N
P N\ AN
. N L L 1L r N\ - "
\\ !// —— ————— 7 ——— /// CASSIDY
7 N // GROUP
\\\ l// N\
\\\ // /// LOS...
—TIT—1 I —1 I — | 11 11 =
EE S - e Ribbon Court, Foleshill
Obscure glazed i g o s ’
g i 1 1] i Road, Coventry
1 | I— | — — —  — e
Drawing....
11 [ | [ I T [ ] L ] C ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Olscure glazed _ ﬁ _ﬁ _ _ ﬁ E E Proposed Elevations 1, 2
— — — — — — — — [ ] L ) 3.
11 I | [ 1] ] 11 | ———| — 1  —— | [ TT ] l r : : Scale |1:100 @ A1 Date Nov '0F
obsoure glazed P E [ = P AN E Brick C - Red )
Tt S i Deawn | dpr Checked
- - L dp N P
Brick A - Red ﬁ wvh—l_h RBrick A - Red ol Mo... Dwg Mo... Rev...
w=x i=x s 1018 006 D

Hv,\Buomﬁm& Elevation Three 1: 100 @ Al - EEM@E\*ZZ\Z&\

ano Extsting

Page 20


Mary.Doria
Text Box
Existing and 

Mary.Doria_1
Text Box
and Existing 

Mary.Doria_2
Text Box
and Existing 


0

5.6 50 A0

\

11|11

Proposed Elevation Street Scene to Foleshill =Road 1: 200 @ A4

and Extsting

Brick C - R ety

m N
N

N

[m] [m] o o N

L ]

ick A -Red

\ .amﬁmﬂﬂwmnmsﬁ_.

"N\

BrickCc—red

Proposed Elevation Four 1: 100 @ Al

and Extsting

S

.-
.
.
-
.
.
N
N
N
N
N
N
T
.

véﬁomm& Elevation Six 1:

and Extsting

Brick D - Buff

Brick A - Red

Brick D - Buff

Brick C - Red

Brick A - Red

Brick D - Buff

Brick ¢ - Red

Brick A - Red

L D

i)

4: :ﬁg

OO [

Do Not Scale

This dirawing Ls for
planning purposes only.

Stone Heads and Ctlls

Colour Buff

Brick D -

Brick A - Red

Brick B - _Red

Brick C - Red

BuUff

Brick C - Red

miz

]

— 1F

=1

=

=1

[

L]

[ ]
Brick A - Red ﬁ I

I

| 1=

il

ull

Proposed Elevation Street Scene to Churehill Ave Road 1: 200 @ Al

and Extsting

_

> 4
==l -
N — S
|
]

||

Brick-C—r¢d

IS —

M1 O

|

I I

N
/

[T =FT

%oo%éggéggéggg
&

RN

%
.
.
-
.
N\
.
.
.
.
.
W
-

=

R

\

Proposed Elevation FLve 1: 100 @ Al

anot

Extsting

Brick D - Buff

Brick C - Red

Brick A - Red

Rev.C. Feb'og - amended to planning
meeting with gH § Client £-2-0€.
Rev.B. Jan'og - amended to planning
letter refSP/DR/PC/22188/R dated
F-2-0%.

Rev.A.Jan'og - amended to planning
letter refSP/DPR/PC/22188/R dated
18-1-0€ and clients comments.

\

rmrda fim

michael ramus architects

chartered architects

76 priory road, kenilworth
warwickshire, CV8 I1LQ

01926 512 400 & 511 111
info@ramus-architects.co.uk

client...

CASSIDY

QQQQQ

_Job...

=Lbbon Court, Foleshill
Road, Coventry

Drawing....

Proposed Elevations 4, 5,
© &§ street scenes.

Scale |1:100 @ AL Date Nov '0F

Drawn dpr Checled

Job No...
1018

Dwg No... REV...

00F C

Drawing Status...

PLANNING

Page 21


Mary.Doria_3
Text Box
and Existing 

Mary.Doria_4
Text Box
and Existing 

Mary.Doria_5
Text Box
and Existing 

Mary.Doria_6
Text Box
and Existing 

Mary.Doria_7
Text Box
and Existing 


Do Not Scale
This dirawing Ls for
planning purposes only.

restdential clreulation areas

Restdential apartment areas

communal clreulation areas

, Communal room areas
Elevation Three

Staff areas

m.

mh
=_:
iy
@

L ™

1] 1 1] 1
\
/ @ N |
] ~ Apartment 2
. ! Two Bed
T T [ |
A :
w X
| I 3 N
k) \ S : |
i g s
=T > aVu
Flat Roof - | | 8 3 | £
O M L
| O N Apartmgrt 19
K < 5
. // I ﬁ S
W 2
v = A
. 2
3 staff e
N , , M)
S sitting, S
S Yoo | i —— r— [ o
’ | _>_ | | E _a_ | - )
- . N4
[ E o O
- ] -
vz Jﬁ [ ] N % op
\r\wﬁm/ | Apartment 21 AP
- > g one Be

Staff

o — ™ |m- —
eter ) ]
Ak @ up'd ! L
! Assisted -
_© Bathroomn -

choanaing/,
“Lghofrer (o == 8
| \vo L ﬁ | —
® L cleaner ﬁw%
St

Rev.B.Feb'0g - amended to wmeeting
9-2-08 ot CCC with GH § client.

Rev.A. Jan'og - amended to planning
B letter refSP/DR/PC/22188/R and clients

w comments.,

ET]

J d — | mra nom

michael ramus architects

1 [ chartered architects
\Pﬁsﬁ_\_}ms\ﬁHH B%E\.WS?@?WHM T 76 priory road, kenilworth
one Bed ] owne Bedt | warwickshire, CV8 IQ
@ @ @ [ ] f ; [ ] 01926 512 400 & 511 111
/ 2 /\: 2 ; info@ramus-architects.co.uk
ya- . — I _ ! I ; 1 . I _ partment 14 -
nTl_ _ ———— —— _ _|_ L _I_ [ —— Two Bed client...

CASSIDY

RO U

. % N —— Job...

RLbbon Court, Foleshill
Road, Coventry

Elevation one

Drawing....

Proposed Flrst Floor Plan

Extsting and

Proposed Flrst Floor Plan 1: 100 @ Al

Drawing Status...

PLANNING

Page 22


Mary.Doria_8
Text Box
Existing and


Existing boundary
wall treatment
retained

Existing brick
SDSSQS& wall
retained

%

Proposed Grounda Floor Plan 1: 100 @ Al

and Extsting

SN

FoLESHILL ROAD

CAlAaaLkill Mo _

Elevation one

/ / Elevation Three
O
>ecurity oy -
-
% a v (N
O
§ 7 7 7 7 7 7 =2 1
9 g = 7 & 5 4 2
10 7
Parking spaces in
To% paving
7 Seeurity Gates |
| Ti —> 9 11.2m 4
Tarmac
Existing bou . s
wall treatpnent —¥™ 1o/ Parking spaces in
retpined . block paving /
i ~ S Tarmac ! L _l
2 B - N
2 T
- rtvient ﬂ ‘_
o o b4 owne Beo .
| E _
= o)
BRI i — O
7 | !
C0 O / 3 | |
e — ! s | 2
| g )
y OO OO / : - | A
“of Y \ P —/ 0
0 O = -
@mG Q O Havd floor aren //// Phved @
N Emefgency ,
s O @ vﬁ@ Q o N A Anmlqulance v ﬁ Open Up ém: L ?9\&
PAVIng o \ Soft floor avea L Abcees _ S\Mﬂ of baclghles contine
ning / Lounge . mrtwo ee = with railing.
OO OO ared \, § Refuge turning = «_\mp 9
OWe : - X
(@)
\\\\\\\\\\ / [ 5
/ N
i OO OO ~ N
Existing bowas / . i3 _ el
wall treatin / S a
/ A o =
vetitl , - s -
© %mém_& W ,m M
S m.ﬂw e T T T T == | N N P - §\Jm — M
) | = o =
" Glazed | A 59 o i,
3 it ﬁ = 8
= over | = =
N | s |l 3
W _ ) Kitchen , _;H; 2 ﬁ | 3 o
1 1] 1 DV
K Hard floov area | Level ] > [ ] NP 2 v
1] ” Access ® —— | | |
[ | B m 1N & El B dlas N [l N
5 L7 Apartinent 10 fe = — S
Multl purpose room. ] 1 \
, || qQuest e Beol L | ey
| Apartment N |® eup _ open up wall infromt
~ % 2 - [ | Accieted = Bm\ goSS&m\o\o tHojue
N Plant I @ Bathroont f ,\,\Dﬁms Am_\h? ratling.
® I m,w !
U\,\ roomt iy / T ==
A y . f |
e 2 @ A | _ ﬁ Wﬂm — [ ﬁ 1 ]
c r_ EO | n: / \ Ol
U\X L N i / e
» T 1 = Cleaner il
|
- / < |
- kitche . — B |
WE @ Security Soft floor arvea g _ f
’ (@) Doors { /|
Pavin. - o) mui
il ,
Laundyr /|
7 Y staff ] ~ T a P 0 1 1
WC \WU Hﬂv/ i : 7 7 7 ZJ
i < I
|/ \ aflo T 1 T I
\ e R — N F 2
T " e O
/ R
.WM\_\( // /ED / \\\\\\ _ :
N |
— Stores | \‘ . ,i
Apaftient . 5 ENOl
/ artment 7 — |
M_MNNW%W@_\MWM ‘ Prayer room Manager Fogg vC e Beol ﬁ @ . :,
] B =
|
O = _ N | |
tment = f
@ : : L ¢ Bed Apartment 4 _ 'l
ﬂ Lo —1, _ = I - | | | e med !
Q, aving ] _ % L= = | @ [ ] | f
, I
_ A iy I
w QT ) | I s | | — ;
= | B oY G ( Security wall § rail to perimeter overall _ _ 0
@ j helght 2m - to detall ————7 i
-——_——— - —— = IIIHI - — — — — T— = d = [ — ——
; — O ﬁ\\” ,ﬂ\\\mu\\ oo | T \J\\J\\J@ﬂr\,\wuwﬂl I O open up wall bnfront pP
— N TQ L open L Wi ,:\(304 b © baclonies cont§rmewith
| o | of baclanies &%SEE&L I [ ] Aull railing.
‘ 7 ’ sy 7
M: 0 0 W L W W W with @r E,?:S@.” o f
TAn - , Footwa Y | o o I Footway (asphalt
Un T : /R 1.0h y (asphalt) 7 | ; Bus shelter G | | ”TGU )
Ll R R | - J R
~__ N D l ,, | d WW \\\\\\\\\\
| ! 7 , , o
N N

Do Not Scale
This dirawing Ls for
planning purposes only.

restdential clreulation areas

Restdential apartment areas

Ccommunal ctreulation areas

Communal room areas

Staff areas

Existing access
closed to cce
standard
specification.

2 X 2m
pedestrian
vision mﬂS&.

CHURCHILL ROAD

Rev.B.Feb'og - amended to meeting
9-z-ogatcce with gH § client.

Rev.A. Jan'og - amended to planning

letter refSP/DR/PC/22128/Q and clients
comments.

7

rmrd

michael

ramus architects

chartered architects

76 priory road, kenilworth
warwickshire, CV8 I1LQ

01926 512 400 & 511 111
info@ramus-architects.co.uk

client...

CASSIDY

_Job...

=Lbbon Court, Foleshill
Road, Coventry

Drawing....

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

1: 100 @ Al Date Nov '0F

Drawn | dpr Checked

Job MNo...

1018

Dwo No...

002

Rev...

B

Drawing Status...

PLANNING |

Page 23


Mary.Doria_9
Text Box
and Existing 


Do Not Scale
This dirawing Ls for
planning purposes only.

rRestdential clreulation areas

Restodential apartment areas

communal ctreulation areas

Elevation Three
/ﬁ /_\ communal room areas
S «— BN . ¢ Staff areas
— L A L o— @ _l
/ 1] 1 1] 1
\ S - /]
\ o = I
] _ >.ws_&§m§w w@
; ; Two ®Bed | H
. T4y < |
N 7 7 7 O g7
: 3
— : i
/1l :
N X
> e ‘
s 0 - Statr
A . 2 s
m _|“__ S D 1
Flat Wbo..m I = S 7 7 7 O \t/
= | | 3 b P |
T [ —
O — N
- @ ! | Apartmept 34 I
/ /$\ — one Q_. /
5 ~N \ g— s
IS . = F
& g
B i
IS IS
3 3
- T r— ] T
) PN | L ) ’
| | S gl IEn i |
T s
Apartment 35 | [ = @
gter
up'd |
i O P fii
- - - Asslsted
ceneral _@ Bathroom
. = -
\\ Cleaner
N B Rev.B.Feb'og - amended to meeting
- ~NTHT Jr e % 9-2-08 at CCC with GH § client.
STHHE D < I 7 7 7 Rev.A. Jan'og - amended to planning
letter refSP/DR/PC/22128/Q and clients
Q O 7 comments.,
- o N
1 | ‘Mmra =
Apartment 27 L . :
H B owne Beo ” | michael ramus Qwo*.d:,moﬁm
; _H_ @ my * E chartered architects
/ /\ }TS_‘._\SmS\WUQ g £ 29 76 priory road, kenilworth
\P ; I S . | _ O_\me& .vS ment 2 warwickshire, CV8 ILQ
HT __|_|_| |_|_|__ T————7 A‘Eowm& 01926 512 400 & 511 111
@ _H_ ﬁ info@ramus-architects.co.uk
|_I—§<_|_ l I | I — | I Cclient...
v
E— ——
CASSIDY
GROUP
_Job...

Elevation Owne

=Lbbon Court, Foleshill
Road, Coventry

Drawing....

véﬂomg_ Second Floor Plan

Extsting ano

véﬂomm& Second Floor Plan 1: 100 @ Al

Drawing Status...

PLANNING

Page 24


Mary.Doria_10
Text Box
Existing and 


Elevation Four

Elevation Three

y.

Flat Roof

N\

Roof Volo

}ﬁs rtment “

Two Bed

N

[

Roof Volo

1

Extsting and

véﬂomm& Third Floor Plawn 1: 100 @ A1

Do Not Scale
This dirawing Ls for
planning purposes only.

restdential clreulation areas

rRestdential apartment areas

communal clreulation areas

Communal room areas

Staff areas

Rev.B.Feb'og - nmended to meeting
9-2-0€ at CCC with GH § client.

Rev.A. Jan'og - amended to planning
letter refSP/DR/PC/22188/R and clients
comments.

Page 25

\

rmrda fim

michael ramus architects

chartered architects

76 priory road, kenilworth
warwickshire, CV8 I1LQ

01926 512 400 & 511 111
info@ramus-architects.co.uk

T 1 | . B
ST :
} :w. M 1 Statr
z E EEEEE — ig
3 3 A O \ﬁ/ Roof Volo —
| b b i
Apart p—
- 1 ol
N = £
3
S
_ T _ _ 1 ﬁ it T
n PN
Sz — W o o B
\r&m/ | ApArEIMEnt 4 I S o H= - N
s N \\L, 7oe Beol r : weter 1
|ﬁ: i it ﬁU Eui 1 %Sﬁ
I i — Asslsted one wm&@
m.mf,\w&w_\ﬁ ) Bathroom
RS Cleaner
General St i
mwh g -
] U / 1] |
a2 wal 1n9 | | |
L @ | |
— Gl N y
- Apargment 41 u N Apartiment 42 A 5
W one Beo W A owe Beot i
S S ﬂ\ | J\D 3 migl
1 T — ] I T __ 1 __ T ] I N_Y\HW_.WN& W %ﬁ%ﬁ_\oﬁkw_\w\w#%
O |
| | | | | | |
= IRVgs
[ 7
%
Elevation one : f
\ . —= > -
Z N N
Flat Roof P \F
N Flat Roof
{ === N
el 5
NS
=
AL Flat =oof
Flat Roof
Vs
/ / Amm
Extsting and
L I=El Iirsi=atlIn=S| [ =il
Proposed Roof Plan 1: 200 @ Al A

client...

CASSIDY

_Job...

=Lbbon Court, Foleshill
Road, Coventry

Drawing....

Proposed Third Floor §

Roof Plan
Scale |1:100 @ AL Date Nov '0F
Drawwn iﬂﬁ Checleed
Job No... Dwg No... Rev...
1018 005 B

Drawing Status...

PLANNING



Mary.Doria_11
Text Box
Existing and 

Mary.Doria_12
Text Box
Existing and

Mary.Doria_13
Text Box


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee Report
Planning Ref: PL/2024/0002137/HHA
Site: 12 Broadway
Ward: Earlsdon
Proposal: Replacement of existing windows with uPVC sliding sash
windows and new roof light
Case Officer: Nikki Radwanska
SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to consider the above Householder application which
proposes the replacement of existing windows with uPVC sliding sash windows a new
roof light, within the Earlsdon Conservation Area. The proposals are considered to have
an acceptable appearance on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

BACKGROUND

The application site lies within the Earlsdon Conservation Area where an Article 4
Direction has removed permitted development rights for any alterations fronting the public
realm.

The applicants are seeking to replace the existing single glazed wooden sash windows
with double glazed woodgrain effect units which are composed of uPVC.

The application has been referred to planning committee due to the number of objections
having been received.

KEY FACTS
Reason for report to The application has been referred to committee due to
committee: more than five objections having been received
Current use of site: Residential Dwelling
Proposed use of site: Residential Dwelling
Conservation Area: Earlsdon

RECOMMENDATION

Planning Committee are recommended to grant planning permission subject to
conditions.

REASON FOR DECISION

e The proposal is acceptable in principle.

e The proposal will not adversely impact upon the character or appearance of the
conservation area.

e The proposal accords with Policies: HE2, DE1 and H5 of the Coventry Local Plan
2017, together with the aims of the NPPF.

Page 27



SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site relates to a traditionally styled dwelling forming the end part of a
terrace, prominently located on the corner of Broadway and Berkley Road North. It
benefits from a front garden with street parking to the front. It is noted that the site lies in
a residential area within the Earlsdon Conservation Area, where permitted development
rights are restricted through an Article 4 Direction. The surrounding houses are largely
similar in age and style, but not necessarily in appearance. It is noted that the windows
in the area are mixed in style and materials, many of which are uPVC.

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

The application seeks planning permission for the replacement of the existing windows
with uPVC sliding sash windows and new roof light. The replacement windows will
replicate the design of the existing windows.

PLANNING HISTORY

There have been a number of historic planning applications on this site; the following are
the most recent/relevant:

Application Description of Development Decision
Number
S/2005/3533 Proposed extension to garage Approved
POLICY
Legislation

Section 72 (Conservation Areas) — Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2023. The NPPF sets out the
Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.
It sets out the Government’s requirements for the planning system only to the extent that
is relevant, proportionate and necessary to do so. The NPPF increases the focus on
achieving high quality design and states that it is “fundamental to what the planning and
development process should achieve”.

Consultation was recently carried out seeking views on the Government’s proposed
approach to revising the NPPF. It also sought views on a series of wider national planning
policy reforms. The consultation closed on 24" September 2024.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) adds further context to the NPPF and
it is intended that the two documents are read together.

Local Policy Guidance

The current local policy is provided within the Coventry Local Plan 2017, which was
adopted by Coventry City Council on 6" December 2017. Relevant policy relating to this
application is:

Page 28



Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Policy H5: Managing Existing Housing Stock

Policy DE1 Ensuring High Quality Design

Policy HE2: Conservation and Heritage Assets
Policy EM1: Planning for Climate Change Adaptation
Policy EM2: Building Standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):
SPG Design Guidelines for New Residential Development

SPD Householder Design Guide

Earlsdon Conservation Area appraisal and management plan

CONSULTATION

Non-statutory
Conservation: Objection

Neighbour consultation
Immediate neighbours and local councillors have been notified; a site notice was posted
on 5/11/2024. A press notice was displayed in the Coventry Telegraph on 14/11/2024.

6 letters of objection have been received, raising the following material planning

considerations:

a) uPVC windows would affect the character of the area and the existing windows should
be repaired

b) the application site lays in a Conservation Area which seeks to preserve the Victorian
and Edwardian character of Earlsdon

Any further comments received will be reported within late representations.
APPRAISAL

The main issues in determining this application are the impact on the character and
appearance of the dwelling and the impact on the Earlsdon Conservation Area.

Impact on the character and appearance of the dwelling and the Earlsdon
Conservation Area

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act (1990) requires
in the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, that
‘special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character
or appearance of that area’. This is re-affirmed within Section 16 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (2023), part c of paragraph 203 specifically states that in determining
applications, local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of new
development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.

Local Plan Policy HE2 reflects NPPF policy and states that development proposals
involving heritage assets in general and listed buildings in particular, should acknowledge
the significance of the existing building and the area by means of their siting, massing,
form, scale, materials and detail.

Page 29



The Earlsdon Conservation Area management plan recognises that the character of
many buildings of historic and architectural interest have suffered from the removal of
historic architectural features and replacement such as with inappropriate uPVC windows
and doors. However, Conservation Areas are not intended to stop change or
development, but to ensure that any changes preserve or enhance the character of the
buildings and the area as a whole. In this case the proposed development seeks to imitate
the original windows through the use of uPVC sliding sash windows with a woodgrain
finish and as such the design of the windows is not considered to be inappropriate, but
of a replica design which reflects the character of the property. Furthermore, it can be
seen throughout the area that the windows on the streetscape are a mix of uPVC and
original wood windows. As such, the proposed alterations would not have a great impact
on the appearance of the dwelling or the character of the area.

The Conservation Officer has raised objections to the application, indicating there is a
moderate level of harm and wants the wooden windows to be repaired and refurbished
and then secondary glazing can be used internally if necessary. Officers do not consider
this to be a reasonable request. This is not a Statutory or even Locally Listed Building.
Several neighbouring properties have replaced their original windows with uPVC
windows and where they have retained the style of windows the materials are not
considered harmful in the street scene. Not only are the windows being replaced with
sash sliding windows, but they are incorporating a woodgrain finish. The replacement
windows will have the benefit of energy efficiency for the occupiers.

Equality Implications
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section 149
states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory duty, and the
matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the determination of this
application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development.

Conclusion

The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle and will not result
in any significant impact upon the character and appearance of the dwelling or the
Earlsdon Conservation Area. The reason for Coventry City Council granting planning
permission is because the development is in accordance with: Policies DE1, HE2 and HS
of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, together with the aims of the NPPF.

Page 30



CONDITIONS/REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from
) the date of this decision.

To conform with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as

Reason amended)

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
2 Proposed Side Elevation DWG 12B/04
) Proposed Front Elevation DWG 12B/03
Materials

R For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning
eason

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



eeeeeeee

12 Broadway Location Plan

Plan Reference Number: TQRQM?24304101906617




v —__— Slate \%\
o T == 5 _
Nx\u*.\.\u\ fox Sath . o | |
brick.
WiNd/o w5 ~f;nivhed o f\) N&R\\% ri
A \\.VD\.\.\.m«\ Frmber 1 F 1 L
* \\) KReeessecl poreh EXISHNY dosr 4 Screen retyined
. [ /L BKoADWAY | CY5 GNT
H f, 2 b\xr\\:w No. \N\W\Q\
/ X <
™
(O]
(@)]
©
o

NN. m<\~\\\\ﬁ\/\ \“\*ﬁ\\/\Q mkol&u «)\\b% s \«H W\X\Mﬂ\\/\ﬂ\ AT \.u



_|_D

Recl cating bric Slete coverec! Dbc\w
In \

age 35

T T
f
L _ﬁ mx\ml\(_w box saSA vnc/ovs
] = 1 /n \th.\_\.ns\ #imibers
\* g I
I | —— ﬁ” i
o w L L
\ /
ELEVATION FACING BERKELEY ROAD NoKTH = <707 12 BRADWAY , CV5 GNT
AS EXISTING, DRAW NG Ne 12B/02 1500 A4

OCT ‘24
Ot 24



. —__— Slate roof
: v S Nes~ Velux Consefva \.\0) \.0.0\ \\.rQ\bm
> @L fraished (0 dork grey 7 match slafes.
s T == _
Freposed box sash i . .
wendows = ;5 white o .,(\\u/ Red \SQ\% brick. .
vPVC it Th _)\QR,\W\QT T = | = i
\Pr\.\a} .
‘ - i , ¢
m . K : Nﬂ?uwo“\b%sn\h\. mx\.h*_.\_% doar & Screen Aretined
= 2 I oo IL BRoADWAY | CY5 GNT
B / ._ b\xiiw No, [2B \ oF
1:50 @ A4
(40}
(O]
(@)
: ©

ELEYATION FACING BROADWAY - AS FPROPoSED



j]

Recl gatsng bric Slede Q,BR“\ reof's
In _ vl ‘

Page 37

U

L (A 0PVC ~wWhite pith

H ol i
S«oon\w\.&? Fraish. . _

T
ﬁrx h Froposecl  Lox Sash wanclws

-
]

Il

L]

l C

ELENATIEN FACIN G RERKELEY ROAD NokTH — mas PRoFPSED /2 \w\@xsr_iv: CVv5 6NT
Gc7'24 DRAWING Ny 12B/64 1500,

- s/



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Planning Committee Report

Planning Ref: PL/2024/0002068/HHA

Site: 35 Malvern Road, Coventry, CV5 8LA

Ward:

Proposal: Proposed single storey side and rear wrap around
extension and first floor rear extension

Case Officer: Yeuk Lam

SUMMARY

The application proposes a single storey side and rear wrap-around extension and first
floor rear extension. The overall proposal complies with the SPD Householder Design
Guide and Coventry Local Plan 2017, together with the aims of the NPPF, therefore, the
proposal is recommended for approval.

BACKGROUND

A single storey side extension to the dwelling was approved in 2016, which extended to
within 1m of the side boundary of the property. A larger side and rear extension was
refused earlier in 2024 due to the detrimental impact upon neighbour amenity and visual
amenity.

KEY FACTS
Reason for report to | The proposal received more than 5 objections
committee:

Current use of site: C3 dwellinghouse
Proposed use of site: C3 dwellinghouse
RECOMMENDATION

Planning Committee are recommended to GRANT planning permission subject to
conditions.

REASON FOR DECISION
e The proposal is acceptable in principle and complies with the SPD Householder
Design Guide.
e The proposal will not adversely impact upon highway safety.
e The proposal will not adversely impact upon the amenity of neighbours.
e The proposal accords with Policies: DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, together
with the aims of the NPPF.

SITE DESCRIPTION

35 Malvern Road is a two storey end terrace property located in a corner plot in a wholly
residential area in Sherbourne. The property has an existing rear extension measuring
4.0m in depth. The main amenity space is to the side and rear of the property with a 2.0m
high boundary fence surrounding the site.

Adjoining neighbour no. 37 Malvern Road has an existing 4.0m deep rear extension.

There are no significant level changes within the area.

Page 39



The site has an approved application for side and rear wrapped around extension in 2016
(reference: HH/2016/0838).

PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION
The proposal seek consent for a ground floor side and rear wrap around extension and
a first floor rear extension.

The ground floor wrap-around extension will project 3.4m to the side and 4.0m to the rear.
The side extension will be set back from the principle front elevation and the whole ground
floor side and rear extension will feature a hipped roof.

The first floor rear extension will project 3.0m to the rear. The first floor rear extension will
feature a twin gable roof.

No change of use of the property is proposed.
PLANNING HISTORY

There have been a number of historic planning applications on this site; the following are
the most recent/relevant:

Application Number | Description of Development Decision and Date
HH/2016/0838 Single storey extension to the side | Granted  Conditions
and rear of the existing dwelling | 11/05/2016
house

PL/2024/0001405/HHA | Single storey side extension, single | Refused 16/10/2024
storey and two storey rear extension

POLICY

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2023. The NPPF sets out the
Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.
It sets out the Government’s requirements for the planning system only to the extent that
is relevant, proportionate and necessary to do so. The NPPF increases the focus on
achieving high quality design and states that it is “fundamental to what the planning and
development process should achieve”.

Consultation was recently carried out seeking views on the Government’s proposed
approach to revising the NPPF. It also sought views on a series of wider national planning
policy reforms. The consultation closed on 24" September 2024.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) adds further context to the NPPF and
it is intended that the two documents are read together.

Local Policy Guidance

The current local policy is provided within the Coventry Local Plan 2017, which was
adopted by Coventry City Council on 6! December 2017. Relevant policy relating to this
application is:

Policy DE1 Ensuring High Quality Design

Page 40



Policy H5: Managing Existing Housing Stock
Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):
SPD Householder Design Guide

CONSULTATION
Neighbour consultation
Neighbour notification was sent in accordance with the Communications Record.
5 letters of objection have been received, raising the following material planning
considerations —
- Overlooking or loss of privacy.
- Loss of light and overshadowing.
- Visual impact upon street scene.
- Potential increase of parking — there is no change to current parking arrangement
as the property will remain as a C3(a) dwelling house.
- Potential HMO - this is not a change of use application and planning permission
would be required to convert the property into a HMO, as the site lies within the
HMO article 4 area.
- Disruption and noise created by building work.

And non-material consideration -
- Impact on house prices — not a material planning consideration.

APPRAISAL

The main issues in determining this application are principle of development, the impact
upon the character of the area, the impact upon neighbouring amenity and highway
considerations.

Principle of development

The National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 11, states that “Plans and decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. For Decision Making,
this means:-

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: i.
the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or ii. any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.” Footnote 8 to
paragraph 11 confirms that this includes situations where the local authority cannot
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites.

This proposal is the revised scheme of the previous refusal and this revised scheme has

overcome the previous refusal reasons and is considered acceptable and in accordance
with Policy DE1 and the Householder Design Guide SPD.

Page 41



Impact on visual amenity

Paragraph 131 in Section 12 of the NPPF (2023) states that ‘Good design is a key aspect
of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps
make development acceptable to communities’. This is echoed by Policy DE1 and H5 of
the Coventry Local Plan 2016 which seeks to ensure that development complements or
enhances the character of the surrounding area with regard to scale, layout, density,
mass, design, materials and architectural features.

Policy DE1 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure high quality design and development
proposals must respect and enhance their surroundings and positively contribute towards
the local identity and character of an area.

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states the creation of high-quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.

The National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 135 states that “Planning policies
and decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit.

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.

The NPPF further states (at paragraph 139) “Development that is not well designed
should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and government
guidance on design, taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary
planning documents such as design guides and codes”.

Policy H5 states that the existing housing stock will be renovated and improved, in
association with the enhancement of the surrounding residential environment and to meet
local housing needs.

The site is located on a prominent corner plot where Malvern Road meets Sussex Road.

Page 42



The SPD states that on corner plots extensions will be considered in the context of
openness and character of the plot in relation to the surrounding area and the scale of
the extensions relative to the existing dwelling. In order to achieve this, the SPD requires
that extensions should —

 Deliver a width of extension which is proportionate to the width of the original
dwellinghouse.

* Not infringe upon any established relevant building lines in the immediate vicinity.
* Maintain a minimum distance of at least 2.0m (measured at the narrowest point)
between the edge of the side extension and the boundary.

The site has an approved application for side and rear wrap around extension in 2016
(reference: HH/2016/0838). The approved application established that the single storey
side extension is acceptable despite only 1.0m being retained between the edge of the
side extension and the boundary due to the 2.0m close boarded fence creating a sense
of enclosure. As the projection of the proposed side extension is the same as the
approved side extension in 2016, the side extension is considered acceptable.

The proposed ground floor rear extension is 4.0m in depth and will have the same depth
of the existing rear extension and will only be partially visible from street scene due to
2.0m high fence. Therefore, the proposed ground floor extension is considered
acceptable.

The first floor rear extension will project 3.0m from the original rear wall, which has been
reduced by 0.7m from the ©previous refusal application (reference:
PL/2024/0001405/HHA). Although the first rear extension will still feature a twin gable
roof, considering the depth is now 3.0m instead of 3.7m, the visual impact on street scene
would be significantly reduced. Therefore, the proposal is considered acceptable and
should not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of street scene.

The overall proposal is considered proportionate to the original dwelling house and the
design is considered acceptable.

Impact on residential amenity

The Householder Design Guide SPD states: ‘The depth of the extension should not
exceed a projection of 4m along the boundary or impinge an imaginary 45-degree line
taken from the centre of the neighbour’s closest habitable rear facing window (whichever
gives the greater depth) subject to ground levels and orientation.’

The adjoining neighbour has an existing 4.0m depth single storey rear extension. The
proposed ground rear extension is 4.0m deep same as the existing, therefore, the
proposed ground extension will not infringe the 45-degree sightline from the adjoining
neighbour and is considered in accordance with the Householder Design Guide SPD.

The first floor rear extension will project 3.0m from the original rear wall, which has been
reduced by 0.7m from the previous refusal application. The extension will not impinge the
45-degree sightline from the adjacent neighbour’s habitable room’s window. Therefore,
the extent of projection of the proposed first floor extension is considered acceptable.

Page 43



Neighbours have objected regarding the potential overlooking or loss of privacy and
overshadowing and loss of light. However, officers do not consider that it would be the
case as the proposal will not have any side facing windows on the first floor, the extension
will be located to the north of the adjoining neighbour and will not extend beyond the
neighbour’s extension.

A couple of neighbours have objected due to noise / disruption during construction but
this is an inevitable result of any development and does not warrant refusal of the
application.

Amenity Space

Policy DS3 of the Coventry Local Plan is concerned with creating sustainable
development, sustainable development is meeting the needs of the present without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs, Policy H3 of the
Coventry Local Plan states that new development must provide a high-quality residential
environment. A suitable residential environment includes amongst other requirements,
adequate amenity space.

The application is for an extension to an existing dwelling. However, as a guide, the
Design Guide for New Residential Development (DGNRD) SPD (2022), would require
the following external amenity space:

2/3 beds 65sgm

4+ beds 85sgm

The property will have over 100 sgqm of amenity space remaining after the proposed
development, therefore the proposal complies with SPD and retains sufficient garden
area.

Highway considerations

Policy AC3 of the Local Plan acknowledges that the provision of car parking can influence
occurrences of inappropriate on-street parking which can block access routes for
emergency, refuse and delivery vehicles, block footways preventing access for
pedestrians, reduce visibility at junctions and impact negatively on the street scene.
Proposals for the provision of car parking associated with new development will be
assessed on the basis of parking standards set out in Appendix 5.

The site has a rear access to the rear garage and offers 1no. parking space. However.
this proposal does not include any change of use to the existing property, the site will
remain as a C3(a) residential dwelling house and planning permission would be required
to convert it into a HMO. Furthermore, off street parking would not be affected by the
proposal and the proposal will require no additional parking as per the adopted standards
in Appendix 5. As such there would be no change to parking arrangements or a
requirement to provide additional parking. The proposal would not give rise to highway
safety issues.

Equality Implications

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section 149
states:-

Page 44



(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory duty, and the
matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the determination of this
application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development.

Conclusion

The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle and will not result
in any significant impact upon neighbour amenity and visual amenity, subject to relevant
conditions. The reason for Coventry City Council granting planning permission is because
the development is in accordance with: Policies DE1, H5 and DS3 of the Coventry Local
Plan 2017, together with the aims of the NPPF.

CONDITIONS/REASONS

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from
the date of this decision.

To conform with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
Reason amended)

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
2. Location plan
Proposed plans and elevations DWG 2321/0/E
Existing plans and elevations DWG 2321/2/0

R For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
eason

Other than where specified on the approved plans, no facing and roofing
3. materials shall be used other than materials similar in appearance to those
used predominantly in the construction of the exterior of the existing building.

To ensure that the proposed development has a satisfactory external
appearance in the interests of the visual amenities of the area in

Reason . ccordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Page 45



Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), or any
statutory instrument amending, revoking and/or replacing that Order, no first
floor windows or openings shall be formed in the south-west facing elevation
of the extension hereby permitted, without the prior grant of planning
permission by the Local Planning Authority.

In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties in

Reason accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Page 46



: . ~ .
{8 : Lt
.ﬁxﬂv,? 1 -2
R ¢ ¢ 1M o
oo i

| i ; #

| | :

FRONT _ SIE
ELEVATIONS ASEXISTING o

TR NS N —

Svstex meas

. .mul,wuwﬁfm?-lﬁlw@nﬂri _

pasd

s B P

s e
o — ——

SITEPLAN 1500

PROPOSED EXTENSIONS T0
NO35,MALVERN ROAD,
COVENTRY

100 . 232128

~ CROUND FLOOR .
PLANS AS. EXISTING $ 4 3,3 ¢

(6
2]
Lim
A




; . _ sz ,w \
W rleM. | ___\m.” ]
- ERONT WA
ECEVATIONS AS PROPOSED

SHES

) .
S/ T iR .
. I PROPOSED EXTENSIONS TO

Page 48

- AN NO.35MALVERN ROAD,
~ GROUND FLOOR ~ FIRST FLOOR . COVENTRY

PLANS AS PROPOSED _ o | 11100 " NMN__:\«m

3

)
-
=5y
_11
B
k4
R




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting 7th November 2024
	6 Application - PL/2024/0000935/FUL - Ribbon Court, 689 Foleshill Road
	06a) Ribbon Court, 689 Foleshill Rd - 0000935 final plans

	7 Application - PL/2024/0002137/HHA - 12 Broadway
	07a) 12 Broadway - 0002137 final plans

	8 Application - PL/2024/0002068/HHA - 35 Malvern Road
	08a) 35 Malvern Rd - 0002068 final plans




